(@)

-
o
O
T8
-
<
w
O

County Council Meeting

Chairman

Joseph F. Passiment, JR.

Vice Chairman

D. Paul Sommerville

Council Members

Michael E. Covert
Gerald Dawson
Brian E. Flewelling
York Glover, SR.
Chris Hervochon
Alice G. Howard
Mark Lawson
Lawrence P. McElynn
Stu Rodman

County Administrator

Ashley M. Jacobs

Clerk to Council
Sarah W. Brock

Administration Building

Robert Smalls Complex
100 Ribaut Road

Contact
Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228
(843) 255-2180
www.beaufortcountysc.gov

County Council Agenda

Monday, September 28, 2020 at 6:00 PM

[This meeting is being held virtually in accordance with Beaufort County
Resolution 2020-05]

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND PUBLIC HEARING COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED IN
WRITING VIA EMAIL TO THE CLERK TO COUNCIL AT SBROCK@BCGOV.NET OR PO
DRAWER 1228, BEAUFORT SC 29901. CITIZENS MAY ALSO COMMENT DURING THE
MEETING THROUGH FACEBOOK LIVE

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION
3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED,

POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - AUGUST 10, 2020
CITIZEN COMMENTS
6. CITIZEN COMMENT (Every member of the public who is recognized

to speak shall limit comments to three minutes - Citizens may email
sbrock@bcgov.net, or comment on our Facebook Live stream to participate
in Citizen Comment)

COMMITTEE REPORTS

7. LIAISON AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

DISCUSSION ITEMS

8. PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION DECLARING SEPTEMBER 15TH
THROUGH OCTOBER 15TH NATIONAL HISPANIC HERITAGE MONTH
9. PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION DECLARING OCTOBER-

EOM ESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH

10. RAY MCBRIDE, DIRECTOR, BEAUFORT COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM:
PRESENTATION OF RETIREMENT PLAQUE AND RECOGNITION

CONSENT AGENDA

11.  CONSENT AGENDA (Page 3)

ACTION ITEMS

12. FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A
DISTANCE LEARNING GRANT, WHICH WOULD EARMARK $200,000 FROM THE



http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/

COUNTY’S GENERAL FUND BALANCE TO AWARD GRANTS TO APPLICANTS TO ASSIST WITH THE PROBLEMS
RELATED TO DISTANCE LEARNING

13. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR THE BEAUFORT COUNTY AIRPORT (AWR) HANGAR GROUND LEASE
AGREEMENT

14. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING ACCOMMODATIONS TAX/ HOSPITALITY TAX RESERVE FUND

15. FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2019/56 PENN CENTER RENOVATIONS

16. THIRD AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE TO
ESTABLISH “SHORT TERM HOME RENTAL” AS A SPECIAL USE

17. THIRD AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PEPPER HALL AND
OKATIE RIVER PARK JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
18. CONSIDERATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF IAN SCOTT TO THE AIRPORTS BOARD
CITIZEN COMMENT
19.  CITIZEN COMMENT (Every member of the public who is recognized to speak shall limit comments to three

minutes - Citizens may email sbrock@bcgov.net, or comment on our Facebook Live stream to participate in
Citizen Comment)

20. ADJOURNMENT

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC




CONSENT AGENDA

|~

N

|

|~

|

o

I~

|00

|0

THIRD AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): ARTICLE 5, SECTION 5.3.20 APPLICABILITY—= TO APPLY ARCHITECTURAL
STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES TO TWO-FAMILY (DUPLEX) RESIDENTIAL

THIRD AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY BEAUFORT
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA ACTING THROUGH BEAUFORT COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF NOT EXCEEDING
$20,000,000.00 PROMISSORY NOTE AND A CREDIT AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING PROPER OFFICERS TO DO ALL
THINGS NECESSARY OR ADVISABLE; AND OTHER MATTERS INCIDENTAL THERETO.

THIRD AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE FRIPP ISLAND PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT,
SOUTH CAROLINA, MAY ISSUE NOT EXCEEDING $1,550,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND TO PROVIDE
FOR THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF THE SAID FINDING AND AUTHORIZATION.

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE - ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 18.3 ACRES
(R100 024 000 032A 0000, R100 024 000 0276 0000, R100 024 000 030C 0000, AND R100 024 000 033A 0000)
AT THE INTERSECTION OF BAY PINES ROAD AND LAUREL BAY ROAD FROM T2 RURAL AND S1 INDUSTRIAL TO
C4-COMMUNITY CENTER MIXED-USE DISTRICT. (Public Hearing and Third Reading on October 12, 2020)

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CODE (CDC): ARTICLE 5, SECTION 5.6.50.E(2) TO ALLOW FOR MINOR MODIFICATIONS TO BILLBOARDS TO
IMPROVE SAFETY STANDARDS DURING HURRICANES AND HIGH WIND EVENTS. (Public Hearing and Third
Reading on October 12, 2020)

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO NEGOTIATE AND
EXECUTE A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH MOBILE COMMUNICATIONS AMERICA. (Public Hearing and Third Reading
on October 12, 2020)

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE $575,000.00 FROM THE H-TAX FUND TO THE HISTORIC
MITCHELVILLE FREEDOM PARK FOR PHASE | BUILD OUT OF THE MITCHELVILLE FREEDOM PARK MASTER PLAN.
(Public Hearing and Third Reading on October 12, 2020)

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE AND APPROVE A MULTI-COUNTY PARK AGREEMENT BY
AND BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND JASPER COUNTY RELATING TO THE TRASK EAST SOLAR, LLC, PROJECT.
(Public Hearing and Third Reading on October 12, 2020)

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT OF AN EXISTING DRAINAGE
EASEMENT AND THE ACCEPTANCE OF A RELOCATED DRAINAGE EASEMENT ON PROPERTY OWNED BY THE
GRANTOR (Public Hearing and Third Reading on October 12, 2020)

SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 3 PARCELS
(R600 021 000 0003 0000; R600 021 000 002A 0000; R600 021 000 003A 0000) ON GRAVES ROAD FROM T2
RURAL TO C3 NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED-USE; APPLICANT: JUDY GRAVES, KEVIN GRAVES, JAN MCKIM. (Public
Hearing and Third Reading on October 12, 2020)

CONTRACT AWARD TO WOOLPERT, INC. FOR ENGINEERING AND CONSULTING STORMWATER SERVICES FOR
PER RFQ#063020.

BID AWARD OF NEW PACKER TRUCK FOR SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

County Council Agenda — Beaufort County, SC




County Council of
Beaufort County

County Council Meeting

Chairman

Joseph F. Passiment, JR.

Vice Chairman

D. Paul Sommerville

Council Members

Michael E. Covert
Gerald Dawson
Brian E. Flewelling
York Glover, SR.
Chris Hervochon
Alice G. Howard
Mark Lawson
Lawrence P. McElynn
Stu Rodman

County Administrator

Ashley M. Jacobs

Clerk to Council
Sarah W. Brock

Administration Building

Robert Smalls Complex
100 Ribaut Road

Contact
Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228
(843) 255-2180
www.beaufortcountysc.gov

Item 5.

County Council Minutes

Monday, August 10, 2020 at 6:00 PM

[This meeting is being held virtually in accordance with Beaufort County
Resolution 2020-05]

THIS MEETING WILL CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC. CITIZEN COMMENTS AND PUBLIC
HEARING COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED IN WRITING VIA EMAIL TO THE CLERK TO
COUNCIL AT SBROCK@BCGOV.NET OR PO DRAWER 1228, BEAUFORT SC 29901.
CITIZENS MAY ALSO COMMENT DURING THE MEETING THROUGH FACEBOOK LIVE

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Passiment called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.

PRESENT

Chairman Joseph F. Passiment

Vice Chairman D. Paul Sommerville
Council Member Michael Covert
Council Member York Glover
Council Member Stu Rodman
Council Member Alice Howard
Council Member Lawrence McElynn
Council Member Gerald Dawson
Council Member Brian Flewelling

ABSENT

Council Member Chris Hervochon
Council Member Mark Lawson

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

Council Member Flewelling led the pledge of allegiance and gave the
invocation.

Chairman Passiment announced that Council was going to have a moment of
silence in honor of Representative John Lewis.

The Chairman stated that public notification of this meeting is in compliance
with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Vice
Chairman Sommerville to approve the agenda with the addition of the
addition of adding "by title only" to the Pepper Hall / Okatie River Park Joint
Development Agreement. Motion approved without objection.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council
Member McElynn to approve the minutes from June 22, 2020 Caucus and



http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/

Item 5.

Council Meeting. Motion approved without objection.
DISCUSSION ITEMS
PROCLAMATION HONORING DEACON JAMES GARFIELD SMALLS ON HIS 100TH BIRTHDAY

Council Member York Glover read a proclamation honoring Deacon James Garfield Smalls on his 100th Birthday.
PROCLAMATION HONORING THE TABBY HOUSE VOLUNTEERS FOR THEIR YEARS OF SERVICE

Council Member Alice Howard read a proclamation honoring all of the Tabby House volunteers.

PRESENTATION ON THE PAIGE POINT CEMETERY - GENERAL MITCHELL, PRESENTER

General Mitchell and Liz Farrell gave an update and PowerPoint presentation on the status of Paige Point Cemetery.

PUBLIC HEARING ON BONAIRE ESTATES SEWER EXTENSION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)
PROJECT CLOSEOUT

Jessica Daily with the Lowcountry Council of Governments spoke regarding the 1 million dollar block grant the county
received in 2016 to extend sewer service in the Bonaire Estates area and the project is nearly complete therefore she
was seeing public comment.

No citizen comments.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Chairman Passiment read a letter he received from two constituents in his area regarding loud gun fire in their area.
The item was deferred to the Community Services Committee.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

LIAISON AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

TIME SENSITIVE ITEMS

FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PEPPER HALL AND OKATIE
RIVER PARK JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND HIRE BEN JOHNSON TO HELP PROCEED.

Motion: It was moved by Vice Chairman Sommerville, Seconded by Council Member Howard to approve First Reading
by title only of an ordinance REGARDING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PEPPER HALL AND OKATIE RIVER PARK JOINT
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT and hire Ben Johnson to help proceed. Approved without objection, minus Council
Member Flewelling as he was offline during this vote.

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE
(CDC): ARTICLE 5, SECTION 5.3.20 APPLICABILITY— TO APPLY ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES TO
TWO-FAMILY (DUPLEX) RESIDENTIAL (CONSIDERATION OF INVOKING PENDING ORDINANCE DOCTRINE)

Motion: It was moved by made by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Dawson to approve first
reading of an ordinance regarding a text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Article 5, Section
5.3.20 Applicability— To Apply Architectural Standards and Guidelines to Two-Family (Duplex) Residential. Motion was
approved without objection, minus Council Member Flewelling, as he was offline during this vote.

FIRST READING BY TITLE ONLY OF AN ORDINANCE FOR THE IMPOSITION OF A SCHOOL IMPACT FEE FOR SOUTH OF
THE BROAD SERVICE AREA

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC 5




Item 5.

Council Member Rodman stated he would vote against this and addressed some of the comments the home builders
regarding fees.

Council Member Flewelling stated he had the same concerns as Mr. Rodman.

Motion: It was moved by made by Council Member Dawson, Seconded by Council Member Covert to approve first
reading by title only of a School impact fee for South of the Broad. The Votes: Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice
Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Dawson. Voting Nay:
Council Member Covert, Council Member Glover, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member Rodman. Motion

passes 5:4.

CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Vice Chairman Sommerville to approve the
consent agenda. Motion was approved without objection.

ACTION ITEMS

THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 ARTICLE 1l SECTION 28 REGARDING COUNCIL SALARY
AND COMPENSATION

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, Seconded by Council Member Dawson to approve third reading
of an ordinance amending Chapter 2 Article Il Section 28 Regarding Council Salary and Compensation. The Vote: Voting
Yea: Chairman Passiment, Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Glover, Council
Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Dawson

Voting Nay: Council Member Flewelling

PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING AN EASEMENT TO BEAUFORT JASPER
WATER SEWER AUTHORITY ACCESS TO NEW SEWER LINE AT BEAUFORT COUNTY AIRPORT

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council Member Howard to approve public
hearing and second reading of an ordinance granting an easement to BJWSA access to new sewer line at Beaufort

County Airport.

Chairman opened the floor for public comment.

No one came forward.

Motion was approved without objection.

PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO IMPOSE A BEAUFORT COUNTY UNIFORM LAW
ENFORCEMENT SERVICE CHARGE FOR THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, Seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve public hearing
and second reading of an ordinance to impose a Beaufort County Uniform Law Enforcement Service Fee for the Town
of Hilton Head.

Motion to amend: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council Member McElynn to amend the
motion to include accepting the offer from the Town of HHI and in lieu of the uniform fee, 2 million dollar payment
over the next 3 years, take over roads and all maintenance, plus waive the $67,000 a year rent on sheriffs space, pay
the $27,000 overtime at the Heritage, $5,000 for St. Patrick's Day Parade, cover the County's responsibility for the
Island Rec Center, $75,000 a year for Bar Patrol with a CPl increase each year. The agreement would be negotiated at
the end of 3 years.

Council Member Dawson stated HHI is taking over roads they should be paying for anyway.

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC 6




Item 5.

The Vote: Voting Yea: Chairman Passiment, Council Member Rodman, Council Member McElynn. Voting Nay: Vice
Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member
Dawson, Council Member Flewelling . Motion failed 3:6.

Main Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, Seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve public
hearing and second reading of an ordinance to impose a Beaufort County Uniform Law Enforcement Service Fee for
the Town of Hilton Head. The Vote: Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member Covert, Council Member
Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Flewelling. Voting Nay: Chairman
Passiment, Council Member Rodman, Council Member McElynn. Motion Passed 6:3.

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE TO ESTABLISH "SHORT
TERM HOME RENTAL" AS A SPECIAL USE

Motion: It was moved by Vice Chairman Sommerville, Seconded by Council Member Howard to approve first reading
of an ordinance amending the community development code to establish "short term home rental" as a special
use. Motion approved without objection. Council Member Flewelling recused himself from the discussion and vote
using the same recusal form he submitted when the topic went before the Natural Resources Committee.

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE FRIPP ISLAND PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT, SOUTH CAROLINA,
MAY ISSUE NOT EXCEEDING $1,550,000 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION
OF NOTICE OF THE SAID FINDING AND AUTHORIZATION.

Motion: It was moved by Vice Chairman Sommerville, Seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve first reading
of an ordinance finding that the Fripp Island Public service district, South Carolina, may issue not exceeding $1,550,000
of general obligation bonds and to provide for the publication of notice of the said finding and authorization. Motion
approved without objection.

CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION FOR A PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD UPON THE QUESTION OF THE ISSUANCE OF
NOT EXCEEDING $1,550,000.00 OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE FRIPP ISLAND PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT,
SOUTH CAROLINA; PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF THE NOTICE OF SUCH PUBLIC HEARING; AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATING THERETO

Motion: It was moved by Vice Chairman Sommerville, Seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve a resolution
for a public hearing to be held upon the question of the issuance of not exceeding $1,550,000.00 of General Obligation
Bonds of the Fripp Island Public Service District, South Carolina; providing for the publication of the notice of such
public hearing; and other matters relating thereto. Motion approved without objection.

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH
CAROLINA ACTING THROUGH BEAUFORT COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF NOT EXCEEDING $20,000,000.00
PROMISSORY NOTE AND A CREDIT AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING PROPER OFFICERS TO DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY
OR ADVISABLE; AND OTHER MATTERS INCIDENTAL THERETO.

Motion: It was moved by Vice Chairman Sommerville, Seconded by Council Member Howard first reading of an
ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery by Beaufort County, South Carolina acting through Beaufort County
Memorial Hospital of not exceeding $20,000,000.00 promissory note and a credit agreement; authorizing proper
officers to do all things necessary or advisable; and other matters incidental thereto. Motion approved without

objection.

RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT AND REGIONAL AGREEMENTS
FOR JOINT USE EMERGENCY SHELTER WITH JASPER COUNTY AND THE JASPER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT.

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC 7




Item 5.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Covert, Seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve a Resolution
Approving A Supplemental Intergovernmental Agreement and regional agreements for Joint Use Emergency Shelter
with Jasper County and the Jasper County School District. Motion was approved without objection.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADMINISTRATION TO FORWARD PROPOSED ST. JAMES RELOCATION PLANS AND
BUDGET TO FAA

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Rodman, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve a RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING ADMINISTRATION TO FORWARD PROPOSED ST. JAMES RELOCATION PLANS AND BUDGET TO
FAA. Motion approved without objection.

APPROVAL OF A LEASE EXTENSION FOR OLD COURTHOUSE PARKING LOT

Council Member Howard stated she would vote against it.

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve approval of a
Lease Extension for Old Courthouse Parking Lot. The Vote: Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Sommerville, Council Member
Covert, Council Member Glover, Council Member Dawson, Council Member Flewelling. Voting Nay: Chairman
Passiment, Council Member Rodman, Council Member Howard, Council Member McElynn. Motion passes 5:4.

APPROVAL OF FY 2021 CONTRACT RENEWALS

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Council Member Glover to approve FY 2021
Contract Renewals. Motion approved without objection.

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
APPOINTMENT OF ROBERT MCFEE TO THE BEAUFORT JASPER WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, Seconded by Council Member Glover appointment of Robert
McFee to the Beaufort Jasper Water and Sewer Authority. Motion approved without objection.

CITIZEN COMMENT
Comment from Facebook - Ann Ubelis - It is INSANITY to consider mail-in ballotting at this late date. There is no way

you can comply with Federal Law and certify all ballots within the 35 days required. Thousands upon thousands of mail-
in ballots will be discarded. Furthermore, how will you verify the the actual voter sent it in and how will you require a
affirming signature as witness to the voter's signature? You are on a fools errand if you consider this. And what about
complying with state laws and regulations? Will even they allow it?

ADJOURNMENT
Adjourned at 7:59PM

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC 3



https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100009104336736&comment_id=Y29tbWVudDoxNzYyNDYwNTkzODkzMDAwXzE3NjI1ODg1MTcyMTM1NDE%3D&__tn__=R-R

Item 5.

CONSENT AGENDA

29.

THIRD READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE BEAUFORT COUNTY ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A ROAD

USE FEE

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Vice Chairman Sommerville approved

without objection.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

County Council Minutes — Beaufort County, SC




~ Proclamation ~

@I)ereas, September 15 through October 15 is observed nationwide as National Hispanic
Heritage Month; and

EDBIB&B’, in 1968, California Congressman George E. Brown pushed to recognize the
contributions of the Latino community leading to Congress passing the official request for President
Johnson to mark September 15 and September 16 as the beginning of National Hispanic Heritage Week;

and

Bbhereas, in 1987, Representative Esteban E. Torres of California proposed expanding the
observance to cover a 31- day period and, in 1988, Senator Paul Simon from Illinois submitted a
similar bill that successfully passed Congress; and

wbﬂ’kﬁﬂ, on September 14, 1989, President George H.W. Bush became the first president
to declare the 31-day period stating “Not all of the contributions made by Hispanic Americans are so
visible or widely celebrated, however, Hispanic Americans have enriched our Nation beyond measure
with the quiet strength of closely knit families and proud communities™; and

¥hereas, National Hispanic Heritage Month traditionally honors the culture and contributions
of both Hispanic and Latino Americans, celebrating heritage rooted in all Latin American Countries; and

¥hereas, National Hispanic Heritage Month starts on September 15® which marks the
anniversary of independence for Costa Rica, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras and Nicaragua; and

BPereas, National Hispanic Heritage Month running through October 15" also plays tribute to
Mexico, Chile and Belize’s celebration of independence which is September 16", September 18" and
September 21*.

Fotw, therefore, be it regolbed, that Beaufort County Council does hereby proclaim
September 15" through October 15™

“National Hispanic Heritage Month”

Dated this 28t day of September, 2020

e

Joseph Passiment, Chairman
Beaufort County Council




~ Proclamation ~

Ebereas, Domestic Violence Awareness Month calls attention to the fact that
domestic violence is a public health issue that impacts our entire community; and

¥hereas, it is unacceptable that 1 and 4 women and 1 and 33 men will experience
domestic violence in their lifetime; and

Bhereas, domestic violence affects the entire family in which it occurs and leaves
children and learned behaviors that are unhealthy and harmful to their development; and

%bereas’, Hopetul Horizons, our local Children’s Advocacy, Domestic Violence and
Rape Crisis Center assisted approximately 600 victims of domestic violence in 2019; and

wbereas, Hopeful Horizons’ staff, board of directors and volunteers encourage every
person to speak out against harmful attitudes and actions that lead to domestic violence; and

%bereaﬂ, we recognize that preventing domestic violence is possible by working
together to increase education about healthy and unhealthy relationships, build awareness of
signs and dynamics of domestic violence and cultivate a trauma-informed community supportive
of survivors and intolerant of violence and abuse.

ﬁﬂm, thl‘Bfﬂl'B, be it reznlheh, That County Council proclaims the month of
October 2020 as

“Domestic Violence Awareness Month”

and urges all citizens to observe this month by becoming aware of the tragedy of domestic
violence, supporting those who are working toward its end and participating in community
efforts aimed at changing the culture of violence.

Dated this 28th day of September 2020

Jorl Vo~

74 : -t
Joseph Passiment, Chairman

Beaufort County Council




Director, Beaufort County Library System
S O "

In Recognition & Appreciation
Of Your Dedication & Contributions
Of 23 Years To The Citizens
Of South Carolina
Including 5 Years To Beaufort County

Congratulations On Your Retirement

Beaufort County Council




Item 12.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
54 AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

Distance Learning Grants Discussion

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

Finance Committee 09/21/2020

PRESENTER INFORMATION:

Hayes Williams Interim CFO

30 minutes

ITEM BACKGROUND:

Due to the COVID 19 pandemic Beaufort County residents need help related to distance learning.

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

It has been established that there are issues related to distance learning. Beaufort County would like to
earmark $200,000 from its general fund balance to award grants to applicants to assist with the problems
related to distance learning. The County has contacted Coastal Community Foundation to help develop a fund
agreement. The County will need to provide specific criteria for who will be eligible for grant funding and how
the funds may be used. Once the agreement is in place and the funds are made available CCF will advertise
the program, manage the applications, and disburse the funds.

FISCAL IMPACT:

5$200,000 from general fund balance

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

An outside independent agency would handle the applications, awards and compliance of the grants.

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Finance Committee approve the ordinance for $200,000 for distance learning.

13




Item 13.

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

Beaufort County Airport — Hangar Ground Lease Agreement

MEETING NAME AND DATE:

County Council — September 28, 2020

PRESENTER INFORMATION

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA- Engineering
John Rembold, Airports Director (Alternate)

(Time Needed for Item Discussion = 5 minutes)

ITEM BACKGROUND:

September 17, 2020 — This item was unanimously approved by the Airports Board
September 21, 2020 — This item was unanimously approved at Public Facilities Committee

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE:

As a result of the growth of general aviation at the airport, there is a need and an interest for increased
hangar space in our area. Therefore, Beaufort County Airport will like to offer long term ground leases on
vacant land for the construction of aircraft hangars.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Construction will be privately funded. Risk Management has been consulted regarding insurance
requirements.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL:

Approve the hangar ground lease agreement for aircraft storage at ARW Airport.

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:

Motion to approve the first reading of the ordinance for Beaufort County Airport (AWR) Hangar Ground Lease
Agreement and bring forward to the second reading at the next County Council meeting.

Motion to deny the first reading of the ordinance for Beaufort County Airport (AWR) Hangar Ground Lease
Agreement and bring forward to the second reading at the next County Council meeting.

(Next Step — Bring ordinance to next County Council meeting for 2™ reading)

14




New Memos - 2020-0155 Page 1 of 2

Iltem 13.
o\ COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
& PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
g 106 Industrial Village Road, Bldg. 2, Post Office Drawer 1228
I Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228
David L Thomas, Purchasing Director
dthomas@bcgov.net 843.255.2353
TO: M
FROM: David L Thomas. CPPO. Purchasing Director
SUBJ: ll
Recommendation for Approval: ARW Hangar Ground Lease Agreement
DATE:  09/21/2020
BACKGROUND:
As a result of the growth of general aviation at the airport, there is a need for increased hangar space in our area. Therefore, Beaufort
County Airport will like to offer long term ground leases on vacant land for the private construction of aircraft hangars. Several
parties have indicated strong interest in developing hangar space at the airport. This agreement gives the airport the tool it needs to
proceed. The benefit to the airport and to the county is an increase in economic activity at the airport and in the community through
fuel sales, tax revenues, and local private investment.
Hangars will be privately developed via private capital so the airport will not be required to invest significant capital in this project.
VENDOR INFORMATION: COST:
Privately developed hangars via private capital $0.00
@ Insert Addition Vendor Info.
FUNDING: N/A
Funding approved: ll By: raymond.williams  pate: 09/14/2020
FOR ACTION: Finance Committee meeting occurring September 21, 2020.
RECOMMENDATION:
The Finance Committee approve and recommend to County Council approval of the hangar ground lease agreement.
@ HangarGroundLeaseAgreement.pdf
Attachment: 10.35 MB 10 click here to attach a file
cc: Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator Approved: ll Date: 09/16/2020
Check to override approval: O overridden by: Override Date:
Raymond Williams, Finance Director Approved: ll Date: 09/14/2020
15

http://bcweb/PUR/ layouts/FormServer.aspx?xmllocation=http://... 9/16/2020




New Memos - 2020-0155 Page 2 of 2

Item 13.

[V] Date: 09/14/2020

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Engineeringl] Approved:
ready for admin:

Check to override approval: L1 overridden by: Override Date:
Jon Rembold, Director, Airports Department ll Approved: ll Date: 09/14/2020
ready for admin:

Check to override approval: L1 overridden by: Override Date:

@ CCothers
Approved by Committee: ]
Approved by Council: =

After Initial Submission, Use the Save and Close Buttons

16

http://bcweb/PUR/ layouts/FormServer.aspx?xmllocation=http://... 9/16/2020



Item 13.

- 7 Sl iyl
“7’*’4;.5&%.—: SSSSS c ARG LT WA
TO: Councilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Beaufort County Public Facilities Committee

FROM: Howard Ackerman, Chairman, Beaufort County Airports Board
SUBJ: Recommendation for approval: ARW Hangar Ground Lease Agreement

DATE: September 21, 2020

BACKGROUND:

As a result of the growth of general aviation at the airport, there is a need for increased hangar
space in our area. Therefore, Beaufort County Airport will like to offer long term ground leases on
vacant land for the construction of aircraft hangars. The director’s goal is to develop a good land-
use plan for ARW that will provide environmentally acceptable, functional, and aesthetically
pleasing facilities for the general aviation customer. This is an opportunity for a positive economic
development at the airport.

The Beaufort County Airports Board strongly endorses this plan and requests County Council
support.

Hangars will be privately developed via private capital so the airport will not be required to invest
significant capital in this project.

FOR ACTION:
Public Facilities Committee meeting occurring September 21, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Public Facilities Committee approve and recommend to County Council approval of the
hangar ground lease agreement.

Encl: ARW Hangar Ground Lease Agreement
Site Exhibit
Example of Typical Hangars

17




Item 13.

~%;-m%zm' —————————

TO: Councilman Brian Flewelling, Chairman, Beaufort County Public Facilities Committee
FROM:  Jon Rembold, Airports Director
SUBJ: Recommendation for approval: ARW Hangar Ground Lease Agreement

DATE: September 21, 2020

BACKGROUND:

As a result of the growth of general aviation at the airport, there is a need for increased

hangar space in our area. Therefore, Beaufort County Airport will like to offer long term ground
leases on vacant land for the private construction of aircraft hangars. Several parties have indicated
strong interest in developing hangar space at the airport. This agreement gives the airport the tool
it needs to proceed. The benefit to the airport and to the county is an increase in economic activity
at the airport and in the community through aviation fuel sales, tax revenues, and local private
investment.

Hangars will be privately developed via private capital so the airport will not be required to invest
significant capital in this project.

FOR ACTION:
Public Facilities Committee meeting occurring September 21, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Public Facilities Committee approve and recommend to County Council approval of the
hangar ground lease agreement.

Encl: ARW Hangar Ground Lease Agreement
Site Exhibit
Example of Typical Hangars

18




ORDINANCE 2020/

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO LEASE
AGREEMENTS WITH AIRCRAFT OWNERS WHO DESIRE TO CONSTRUCT AN AIRCRAFT
HANGAR IN DESIGNATED AREAS AT THE BEAUFORT COUNTY AIRPORT

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Airport (“Airport”) has a Master Plan and Airport Layout Plan
with changes that depict areas for future hangar development; and

WHEREAS, by entering into ground leases, “Exhibit A”, allowing private development at the
airport, Beaufort County saves significant capital investment while still achieving the goal of hangar
construction; and

WHEREAS, multiple aircraft owners have expressed a desire to develop “box” or “executive”
type aircraft hangars similar to those shown in “Exhibit B” for their aircraft; and

WHEREAS, a significant source of revenue for the airport is fuel sales, therefore it is to the
economic benefit of the airport to lease land to develop such hangars as they typically house aircraft which
tend to purchase more fuel; and

WHEREAS, in the development area, there is adequate acreage for multiple hangar buildings, as
shown in “Exhibit C”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of
Beaufort County for the County Administrator to enter into leases with the future developers of the leased
areas for the long-term benefit of the Beaufort County Airport.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly assembled, does
hereby authorize the County Administrator to enter into lease agreements with the future developers of
areas designated for the construction of aircraft hangars at the Beaufort County Airport.

Adopted this day of , 2020.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:

Joseph Passiment, Chairman
ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council

Item 13.

19




EXHIBIT A

BEAUFORT COUNTY AIRPORT

AIRCRAFT HANGAR AGREEMENT AND GROUND LEASE

WITH

[name of tenant]

Item 13.

20




BEAUFORT COUNTY AIRPORT

AIRCRAFT HANGAR AGREEMENT AND GROUND LEASE

THIS AGREEMENT AND GROUND LEASE (“Agreement”), made and entered into this
day of ,20 by and between the COUNTY of BEAUFORT,

a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), and

[name of tenant] a

[state of organization and type of legal entity]

(the “Lessee”).
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County is owner and operator of the Beaufort County Airport (hereinafter
“Airport”) including vacant land all of which is located at 39 Airport Circle in Beaufort County,

South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, Lessee is the owner or operator of an aircraft which it wishes to base at the

Airport; and

WHEREAS, County has land available at the Airport which is suitable for the erection and

use of an aircraft storage hangar (the “Site”); and

WHEREAS, Lessee wishes to lease the Site from County and to construct a hangar thereon,
and County is willing to lease the Site to Lessee on the terms and conditions provided and set

forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants,
agreements and conditions set forth below, County does hereby agree to lease the Site set forth

below to Lessee, and Lessee does hereby agree to lease the Site from County.

Item 13.

21




ARTICLE I

LEASED PREMISES

Section 1.1  Leased Premises. County hereby demises and lets to Lessee and Lessee

hereby takes and accepts from County a leasehold interest in that portion of the Airport ("Site”)
depicted on Exhibit “A” hereto, consisting of acres, more or less and located at

[address if applicable]. The Site, along with the

improvements to be constructed thereon pursuant to this Agreement in Section 1.2 below

("Leasehold Improvements”) shall be called the "Leased Premises”.

Section 1.2  Improvements by Lessee. Lessee will cause to be erected, constructed, or

installed on the Leased Premises such improvements as Lessee shall determine are reasonably
necessary or desirable to serve as the storage hangar for Lessee’s aircraft (the “Leasehold
Improvements”). Upon the expiration or other termination of this Agreement, Lessee shall
surrender to County possession of all Leasehold Improvements except personal property and

trade fixtures of Lessee then existing on or within the Leased Premises.

Section 1.3 Design of Improvements. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties in

writing, Lessee shall, within sixty (60) days of the execution of this Agreement by all parties
submit to County plans for constructing, erecting and installing the Leasehold Improvements on
the Leased Premises. The plans shall be in final form and shall consist of (1) working drawings,
(2) technical specifications, (3) bid documents and (4) schedule for accomplishing improvements.
Construction shall be completed within eighteen (18) months of inception of lease unless

otherwise approved by the Airports Director.

Section 1.4  Architectural Requirements. Architecture (“Leasehold Improvements”)

will have to be “approved” by the appropriate committee of the Airports Board. All structural

improvements, signs, equipment and interior design and decor constructed or installed by

Item 13.

22




Lessee, its agents or contractors, including the plans and specifications therefor, shall conform in

all respects to applicable statutes, ordinances, building codes and rules and regulations.

Section 1.5  Bonds or Letter of Credit. To ensure that mechanic’s liens are not placed

on airport property, and to ensure that capital improvements once initiated are completed and
not abandoned before completion, County requires Lessee to provide either payment and
performance bonds or Letters of Credit in an amount equal to the anticipated costs of

construction plus ten (10) percent for contingencies.

Section 1.6  Construction of Improvements. Upon written approval of its plans and

specifications by the County, Lessee shall have the right and obligation to enter the Leased
Premises, take possession thereof and commence constructing the Leasehold Improvements.
Unless otherwise agreed by the parties in writing, such construction shall begin within thirty (30)
days after the later of (i) the date of County’s written approval of Lessee’s plans or (ii) the granting
of all necessary permits and approvals by all governmental bodies in charge of the approval
processes, and shall be continuous and expedited so that the Leasehold Improvements shall be
completed as soon as practicable. All contractors shall maintain general liability and worker’s
compensation/employer’s liability insurance coverage reasonably satisfactory to the County.
Lessee shall provide builder’s risk insurance naming the lender and the County as loss payees
with respect to 100% in value of the improvements to be provided under such contracts. No
Leasehold Improvements, unattached fixtures or equipment shall be subject to any liens whether
created by operation of law or by agreement. All construction shall, in all material respects,
conform to and comply with all applicable statutes, ordinances, building codes, rules and
regulations of such authorities as may have jurisdiction over any aspect of said construction.
Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall also procure all building, safety, fire and other permits

necessary for any construction.

Item 13.

23




Section 1.7  As Built Drawings; Cost Certification. Within thirty (30) days of completion

of construction of the Leasehold Improvements, hereby defined as the date of Lessee’s

Certificate of Completion, Lessee shall deliver to County a complete set of as-built drawings.

Section 1.8 Encumbrances on Leased Premises. The Leased Premises shall be

accepted by Lessee subject to any and all then existing easements or other encumbrances, and
County shall have the right to install, lay, construct, maintain, repair and operate such sanitary
sewers, drains, storm water sewers, pipelines, manholes, connections, water, oil or gas pipelines,
and telephone and telegraph power lines and such other appliances and appurtenances
necessary or convenient in connection therewith, over, in, upon, through, across and along the
Leased Premises, or any part thereof, and to enter thereupon at reasonable times for any and all
such purposes; provided, however, that no right of County provided for in this section shall be so
exercised as to interfere unreasonably with the Lessee’s use of the property and improvements

pursuant to this Lease.

Section 1.9  Condition of Leased Premises. Lessee accepts the Site in "as is” condition.

Section 1.10 Title to Leased Premises in County. Lessee agrees and acknowledges that

title to the Leased Premises is, and shall remain, in County. Lessee agrees that its sole interest in

the Leased Premises is and shall be that of a tenant.

Section 1.11 Utilities. Lessee agrees to pay for all utilities used by or attributed to it at,
or in connection with its use of, the Leased Premises, including, but not limited to, service
deposits, meter deposits and all service charges. No such payment shall be considered a payment
of rent entitling the Lessee to a credit under any other provision of this Agreement. In all
instances of any damages to any utility service line caused by Lessee, its employees, contractors,
suppliers, agents or invitees, Lessee shall be responsible for the cost of repair. If other Lessees
subsequently tie into infrastructure which was previously installed by another Lessee (“original
Lessees”), the original Lessee(s) shall be entitled to a pro-rata reimbursement of the costs of

installing the infrastructure which is being tied into.

Item 13.

24




Item 13.

Section 1.12 Rights on Airport. County hereby grants to Lessee the right to store its

aircraft (“aircraft”) in and on the Leased Premises. In connection with its rights to use and occupy

the Leased Premises, Lessee shall have the additional following rights:

(a) Access to and From Airfield. The right (which shall extend to Lessee’s

employees, patrons, guests and invitees), in common with others, of free ingress and

egress by aircraft from the Leased Premises to the airfield.

(b) Use of Apron as Taxiway. The right to taxi its aircraft across the aircraft

aprons appurtenant to the public general aviation terminal at the Airport ("FBO Aprons"),
as needed to access the airfield in common with others to which County has granted a
similar right. Lessee agrees to abide by any apron taxi lanes established by the County
from time to time to regulate the movement of aircraft on and over the FBO Aprons and
to conduct Lessee’s operations in such a manner so as not to interfere with the use
thereof by other lessees, licensees or permittees of the County. The provisions of this
paragraph shall extend to Lessee’s employees, patrons, guests and invitees in connection

with the aircraft.

(c) Public Aircraft Facilities. The right, in common with others, to use existing

and future facilities on the Airport that provide for the landing, taking off and taxiing of
aircraft including navigational aids, hazard designation and warning devices, air field
security roads and fences, lighting and clear zone areas, subject to the applicable fees set
from time to time by the County. The provisions of this paragraph shall extend to Lessee’s

employees, patrons, guests and invitees in connection with the aircraft.

(d) Common Facilities. The right, in common with others, to use the public

portions of the Airport and appurtenances thereto. The provisions of this paragraph shall
extend to Lessee’s employees, patrons, guests and invitees in connection with the

aircraft.

(e) Ingress and Egress. The right, in common with others, of free ingress to

and egress from the Leased Premises over Airport roads, driveways and common areas,

7

25




as the same shall be specified as such from time to time by the County; provided,
however, the foregoing is not intended in any way to relieve Lessee of its obligations to
comply with the Airport’s Security Plan (as described in Section 2.12 hereof) in force from
time to time as required by the United States or its departments and agencies.
Accordingly, Lessee shall be responsible for, among other things, controlling access to
aircraft parked, stored or otherwise located on the Leased Premises and the air
operations area. Lessee shall be responsible for payment of all fines or penalties resulting
from violations of the Security Plan, whether published or in force by virtue of local, state
or federal law or regulation. The provisions of this paragraph shall extend to Lessee’s

employees, patrons, guests and invitees.

(f) Signs. The right to install identification and directional signs on and about
the Leased Premises, subject to prior written approval of the Airports Director, which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, unless the Director shall have provided such
signs as part of an overall sign program, and in all events, such signs shall conform to any

overall sign program of the County.

Section 1.13 County’s Right to Enter and Inspect. Upon reasonable notice to Lessee

(except for emergency or safety matters, in which event, no notice shall be required) the County
shall have the right to enter any part of the Leased Premises at reasonable or necessary times for
the purposes of inspection, protection or exercising any rights under this Agreement. It shall also
have the right, upon reasonable notice to Lessee, to show the Leased Premises at any time within

six (6) months prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Section 1.14 County’s Right to Install Utilities. The County shall have the right to enter

any part of the Leased Premises at reasonable or necessary times for the purposes of installing

any utility lines or related equipment necessary for the Lessee or other users of the Airport.

Section 1.15 Surrender of Leased Premises at Termination. Upon termination, default

or other expiration of this Agreement, Lessee shall immediately surrender the Leased Premises
to County. Any and all capital improvements and fixtures shall become part of the Leased

Premises and shall be surrendered to the County in good condition reasonable wear and tear
8

Item 13.

26




excepted. Lessee’s failure to surrender the Leased Premises to County within sixty (60) days of
County’s request for the same based on termination, default of expiration of the Agreement shall
constitute surrender unless Lessee initiates legal action to prevent the same within forty five (45)

days of County’s request for the same.
ARTICLE I

LEASE TERM AND RESTRICTIONS ON USE

Section 2.1 Effective Date/Commencement Date. The Commencement Date shall be

the day of 20

Section 2.2  Term; Option to Extend. The term of this Agreement (“Term”) shall be

twenty-five (25) years and shall commence on the Commencement Date and, unless terminated
earlier pursuant to law or the provisions hereof, shall continue until midnight on January 31,
20 (“Termination Date”). Lessee may elect to extend the lease one (1) time for an

additional five-year term at a rate to be determined by the Airports Director.

Section 2.3 Holding Over. Should Lessee hold over on any part of the Leased Premises
with respect to which this Agreement has terminated, such holding over shall be deemed merely

a month-to-month tenancy, but otherwise on all the terms and conditions herein provided.

Section 2.4  Right of County to Terminate by Cancellation. If, at any time during the

original term or any renewal term hereof, County requires the use of the Leased Premises for
airfield related purposes, including, but not limited to, expansion of runways and taxiways and
compliance with any safety, clearance, or setback requirements that may be promulgated by FAA
or any successor agency, this Agreement may be canceled by the County. Should the County
elect to so cancel this Agreement it shall (i) advise Lessee as soon as possible when the issue
arises and (ii) give Lessee written notice of cancellation and the purpose therefor at least one
hundred eighty (180) days prior to the effective date of such cancellation ("Cancellation Date").
Upon such notice and the expiration of such notice period this Agreement shall automatically
terminate and be of no further force and effect. Upon any such cancellation the County shall

reimburse to Lessee an amount calculated by multiplying Lessee’s certificated Cost of Leasehold
9

Item 13.

27




Improvements by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of months remaining
on the Term hereof as of the date of termination and the denominator of which shall be three-

hundred (300).

Section 2.5 Restrictions on Use. The Leased Premises and the Leasehold

Improvements and all other property located thereon shall be used solely and exclusively as the
base for Lessee’s owned or leased aircraft and for no other business or activity whatsoever. It
shall be a violation of this Lease for Lessee to use the property for any illegal use or for the
purpose of furthering any illegal activity. Lessee shall not store aircraft that it does not own, lease
and operate; Lessee shall not store itinerant aircraft in or on the Leased Premises except for such
time as the owners or operators thereof are short-term guests, defined as less than fourteen (14)
days per calendar year, of the Lessee. Lessee may service, and perform light maintenance on
Lessee’s aircraft in the hangar. Any service or maintenance required for any Aircraft belonging to
or operated by guests or invitees of Lessee at the Leased Premises or elsewhere on the Airport
shall be obtained from the FBO Manager or a licensed aircraft maintenance company located on

the Airport, if possible.

Lessee is prohibited from engaging in any commercial activity whatsoever, aeronautical
or otherwise, on or in the Leased Premises or elsewhere on the Airport except pursuant to a

separate commercial business lease agreement granted to lessee by the Airports Director.

Section 2.6 Aviation Fuel/Aircraft Servicing. County operates the FBO on the Airport,

including the General Aviation Terminal, hangars and aircraft parking aprons, and maintains and
operates aviation fuel storage and delivery facilities from which it sells and dispenses aviation
fuel to based aircraft owners and operators and itinerant aircraft owners and operators. Fuel will
be sold to and pumped into Lessee’s aircraft by County’s FBO Staff. The fueling of tenant aircraft
shall be provided by the FBO. All fuel shall be purchased from the FBO.

Section 2.7 Abandonment. Unless agreed to by the parties in writing, the failure of
Lessee to utilize the Leased Premises over a continuous period in excess of one-hundred twenty
(120) days for reasons which are not otherwise excused under this Agreement shall be deemed

an abandonment of the Leased Premises by Lessee and therefore a failure to perform Lessee’s
10

Item 13.

28




obligations under this Agreement. Upon such abandonment, County shall have the right, but not
the obligation, to give notice of default under Section 9.1(d) hereof. The mere occupancy of the
Leased Premises by an employee of Lessee without the storage of aircraft in the Hangar shall not

mitigate the requirements of this section.

Section 2.8  Garbage and Refuse Storage and Removal. Lessee shall be responsible for

garbage and refuse storage and removal in compliance with all Airport and other applicable rules

and regulations regarding the disposal of trash and garbage, and at Lessee’s expense.

Section 2.9 Noise, Waste, Odor, Vibrations and Annoyances. Lessee shall conduct its

operations in an orderly and proper manner so as not to commit any nuisance or waste (which
includes failing to maintain improvements to standards established by the County and allowing
capital improvements to deteriorate) at the Leased Premises or annoy, disturb or be offensive to
others at the Airport, and shall take all reasonable measures, using the latest known and most
practicable devices and means, to prevent waste and to eliminate any unusual, nauseous or
objectionable smoke, gases, vapors, odors, or any vibrations tending to damage any Leasehold
Improvements or interfere with activities at the Airport, and to maintain a sound level in its

operations that is in compliance with any applicable governmental rules and regulations.

Section 2.10 Prohibited Acts. In connection with the exercise of its rights to use and

occupy the Leased Premises, or otherwise in its use of or on the Airport, Lessee shall not:

(a) Conduct its operations in a manner that deprives the public of its rightful,

equal and uniform use of Airport property;

(b) Conduct its operations in a manner that interferes with reasonable use by

others of common facilities;

(c) Conduct its operations in such a way as to hinder police, firefighting or
other emergency personnel in the discharge of their duties or as to constitute a hazardous
condition that would increase the risks normally attendant upon the operations

contemplated under this Agreement;

11

Item 13.

29




(d) Conduct or facilitate illegal activities on Airport property or use the aircraft

for illegal purposes or to further illegal activities; or

(d) Store bulk aviation gasoline (AVGAS), kerosene, automobile gasoline, oils,
or other petroleum liquids in or at the Leased Premises without prior permission of the

Airport Director.

Section 2.11 Environmental Representation and Covenants.

(a) Except as is necessary for the normal and ordinary use of the Leased
Premises, as set forth in Section 2.5 above, Lessee shall not cause, permit or suffer any
Hazardous Materials (as defined below) to be brought upon, treated, kept, stored,
disposed of, discharged, released, produced, manufactured, generated, refined or used
upon, about or beneath the Leased Premises or any portion thereof, by Lessee, its agents,
employees, contractors, invitees or permitted subtenants or assigns, except in strict
compliance with the Environmental Laws, as defined below. For purposes of this
Agreement and this section, the term "Hazardous Materials" shall mean and include,
without limitation, all types of chemical substances, petroleum products, flammable
explosives, radioactive materials, urea, formaldehyde, PCB’s, asbestos or material
containing asbestos, and any other illegal, regulated, hazardous, toxic, dangerous or
otherwise harmful waste, substance or material. For purposes of this Agreement and this
paragraph, the term "Environmental Laws" shall mean and include, without limitation,
any and all federal, state, county, city or other law, statute, ordinance, treaty, code, rule,
regulation, order or decree as may now or at any other time be or have been in effect,
regulating, establishing liens for the cleanup of, imposing liability or standards of conduct
concerning, or in any manner relating to any Hazardous Materials. For purposes of this

Agreement and this paragraph, the term "Release" shall mean and include, without

limitation, any and all discharging, spilling, leaking, dumping, emitting, emptying, seeping,

injecting, escaping, leaching, disposing and the like.

12

Item 13.

30




(b) Lessee shall not cause, permit or suffer the existence or the commission
by Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees, or by any other person, of a
violation of any Environmental Laws upon, about or beneath the Leased Premises or any

portion thereof.

(c) Lessee shall not create or suffer to exist with respect to the Leased
Premises, or permit any of its agents, employees, contractors, or invitees to create or
suffer to exist any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance of any kind
arising out of any Environmental Laws. Should any such lien, security interest or other
charge or encumbrance be filed against the Leased Premises, Lessee shall cause said lien,
security interest or other charge or encumbrance to be removed from the Leased
Premises or shall provide a bond satisfactory to County for the payment or satisfaction
thereof. Said actions shall be taken by Lessee as soon as practicable; provided that said
actions shall be taken in no event later than thirty (30) days from the filing, posting or

notice of such lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance.

(d) Lessee covenants and agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless County from and against any and all damages (including
without limitation all foreseeable and unforeseeable consequential damages), losses,
liabilities, obligations, penalties, costs (including without limitation, t